Massachusetts Cultural Resource Information System

Scanned Record Cover Page

Inventory No: CON.425

Historic Name: Miles, Joseph Jr. House

Common Name:

Address: 170 Fitchburg Tpk

City/Town: Concord

Village/Neighborhood: Nine Acre Corner

Local No: F15-3445
Year Constructed: r 1825

Architect(s):

Architectural Style(s): Greek Revival

Use(s): Agricultural; Multiple Family Dwelling House; Single Family

Dwelling House

Significance: Agriculture; Architecture

Area(s): CON.AT: Nine Acre Corner

Designation(s):

Roof: Asphalt Shingle

Building Materials(s): Wall: Wood; Wood Clapboard

Foundation: Granite; Stone, Cut



The Massachusetts Historical Commission (MHC) has converted this paper record to digital format as part of ongoing projects to scan records of the Inventory of Historic Assets of the Commonwealth and National Register of Historic Places nominations for Massachusetts. Efforts are ongoing and not all inventory or National Register records related to this resource may be available in digital format at this time.

The MACRIS database and scanned files are highly dynamic; new information is added daily and both database records and related scanned files may be updated as new information is incorporated into MHC files. Users should note that there may be a considerable lag time between the receipt of new or updated records by MHC and the appearance of related information in MACRIS. Users should also note that not all source materials for the MACRIS database are made available as scanned images. Users may consult the records, files and maps available in MHC's public research area at its offices at the State Archives Building, 220 Morrissey Boulevard, Boston, open M-F, 9-5.

Users of this digital material acknowledge that they have read and understood the MACRIS Information and Disclaimer (http://mhc-macris.net/macrisdisclaimer.htm)

Data available via the MACRIS web interface, and associated scanned files are for information purposes only. THE ACT OF CHECKING THIS DATABASE AND ASSOCIATED SCANNED FILES DOES NOT SUBSTITUTE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE OR FEDERAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS. IF YOU ARE REPRESENTING A DEVELOPER AND/OR A PROPOSED PROJECT THAT WILL REQUIRE A PERMIT, LICENSE OR FUNDING FROM ANY STATE OR FEDERAL AGENCY YOU MUST SUBMIT A PROJECT NOTIFICATION FORM TO MHC FOR MHC'S REVIEW AND COMMENT. You can obtain a copy of a PNF through the MHC web site (www.sec.state.ma.us/mhc) under the subject heading "MHC Forms."

Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Massachusetts Historical Commission
220 Morrissey Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02125
www.sec.state.ma.us/mhc

This file was accessed on: Friday, October 23, 2020 at 12:45 PM

FORM B - BUILDING

Assessor's number

USGS Ouad

Area(s)

Form Number

Massachusetts Historical Commission 80 Boylston Street Boston, Massachusetts 02116 F15-3445

CONCORD

AT

CONCORD

ect/Builder unknown

Exterior Material:

425

SFUT B

| Transaction of the Control of the Co |
|--|
| |
| |
| |

brother-in-law of both Edwin and Gardner Wneeler

Sketch Map

Draw a map of the area indicating properties within it. Number each property for which individual inventory forms have been completed. Label streets including route numbers, if any. Attach a separate sheet if space is not sufficient here. Indicate North.

| 1 2 | (| 2 |
|-----------------------|-------------------------------------|----------------|
| 2 LD BOU | ts and a 2-over-2 icht "hal | 12 /S |
| Take- and co | ak Reviva rnerboard ry, also, | THE US WOODS |
| tent Chi | Z Z | de Despendents |
| tert CH BURG | TPKG | De maria |
| Recorded by A. Forbes | by Tillie | _Sweeet |

| Foundation | dressed granite | | |
|--------------------|------------------|--|--|
| Wall/Trim | wood clapboard | | |
| Roof | asphalt shingle | | |
| | | | |
| Outbuildings/Secon | idary Structures | | |
| Outbuildings/Secon | idary Structures | | |

entry altered; door, porch added to ell; picture windows on e. and W. of main house.

Acreage less than one acre

good

Serting Next to small shopping mall at commercial intersection with Sudbury Road. Opposite open field. Stone retaining wall across front; vertical-board fence at east front of yard.

Organization for Concord Hist. Commission

Date (month/dayhear) 1991

| ARCHITECTURAL DESC | CRIPTION | □ see co | ntinuation sh | peet | | | |
|----------------------------------|--------------|-------------|-----------------|---------------|-------------|-------------|------------|
| Describe architectural features. | Evaluate the | characteris | tics of this bu | ilding in ter | ms of other | r buildings | within the |
| community. | | | | ard femor | | | |

Although Concord center has several examples of the large 2 1/2-story, five-bay pedimented "gable-end" house type, this house is one of the few to be found in the outlying areas of the town. It is a deep house, extending four bays to the rear, its depth accentuated by two side ells that flank the rear corners—a long 1-story ell on the east and a short one on the west. The east ell incorporates a former wagon shed, as is evidenced by a wide double-leaf, vertical-board swinging door in its outer bay.

Although a few features, such as the projecting window frames and the large pair of chimneys flanking the roof ridge, hark back to the Federal period, most of the house's detail is in the Greek Revival style. The architectural trim includes the very wide frieze, rake- and cornerboards typical of the style, and the cornice is molded and boxed. The main entry, also, in spite of some replacement surround, has Greek Revival full-length sidelights and a high entablature with projecting lintel. The windows of the main house have 2-over-2-sash that would have been added after 1850. The east ell, however, has three-light "half-sash" under the eaves, a window type prevalent in the 1820's-30's.

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE see continuation sheet

Discuss the history of the building. Explain its associations with local (or state) history. Include uses of the building, and the role(s) the owners/occupants played within the community.

This house, constructed probably some time in the 1820's, was built for a member of the old Nine Acre Corner Miles family, Joseph Miles, Jr. It descended to his son, Levi Miles, (b. 1825.) The Mileses and Wheelers were related several times by marriage, as they were with other Nine Acre Corner families. Levi, for instance, was the brother-in-law of both Edwin and Gardner Wheeler, as all three married Rice sisters.

Farmer Granville Miles, son of Levi and Martha Rice Miles, inherited the property by 1875, and owned it through the turn of the century, until at least 1917. It was subsequently acquired by farmer Thomas L. Eldridge and his wife Alice.

According to local lore, the house may have been a stop on the Underground Railroad before the Civil War, part was once a blacksmith's shop, and it may also have served as a grange at one time. A ghost is even said to inhabit the building.

The house was divided for two families in the 1930's.

| BIBLIOGRAPHY and | or REFERENCES | □ see | continuation sheet |
|------------------|---------------|-------|--------------------|
|------------------|---------------|-------|--------------------|

Maps and atlases: 1830, 1852, 1856, ca. 1871, 1875, 1889, 1906.

Town Directories.

Wheeler House File.

Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places. If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.